NUSC Technical Report 8689 18 May 1990



DTIC FILE COPY

## AD-A224 906

# Evaluation of Integrals and Sums Involving [sin(Mx)/sin(x)]<sup>n</sup>

Albert H. Nuttall Surface ASW Directorate





### Naval Underwater Systems Center Newport, Rhode Island / New London, Connecticut

9.0 07 25 098

Approved for public release; distribution is unlimited.

#### Preface

This research was conducted under NUSC Project No. A75215, Subproject No. R00N000, "Determination of Concentrated Energy Distribution Functions in the Time-Frequency Plane", Principal Investigator, Dr. Albert H. Nuttall (Code 304). This technical report was prepared with funds provided by the NUSC In-House Independent Research and Independent Exploratory Development Program, sponsored by the Office of the Chief of Naval Research. Also, this report was conducted under NUSC Project No. D19840, Subproject No. S0223, "Large Area Array", Principal Investigators Dr. H. H. Schloemer and Dr. S. H. Ko (Code 2133), and sponsored by R. Dosti, NAVSEA-63D4.

The technical reviewer for this report was Dr. Sung H. Ko (Code 2133).

Reviewed and Approved: 18 May 1990

Larry Freeman Associate Technical Director Surface ASW Directorate

REPORT D	OMB No. 0704-0188		
ublic reporting burden for this collection of athering and maintaining the data needed. A offection of information, including suggestio	information is estimated to average. I hour pe- and completing and reviewing the collection of ins for reducing this burden, to Washington He	r response, including the time for i information. Send comments reg radquarters Services, Directorate fo	eviewing instructions, searching existing data source anding this burden estimate or any other aspect of th or information Operations and Reports, 1215 Jeffers
AGENCY USE ONLY (Leave bid	ank) 2. REPORT DATE	3. REPORT TYPE AN	D DATES COVERED
	18 May 1990		
TITLE AND SUBTITLE		<u>^</u>	5. FUNDING NUMBERS
[sin(Mx)/sin(x)] <sup>n</sup>	ALS AND SUMS INVOLVING	ს 	PR: A75215
AUTHOR(S)			PE: 61152N
Albert H. Nuttall			
PERFORMING ORGANIZATION	NAME(S) AND ADDRESS(ES)		8. PERFORMING ORGANIZATION
Naval Underwater Sys	stems Center		
New London Laborator	ry		TR 8689
New London, CI 00320	0		
SPONSORING / MONITORING A	GENCY NAME(S) AND ADDRESS(E	S)	10. SPONSORING / MONITORING
			AGENCY REPORT NUMBER
Office of the Chief Arlington VA 22217-	of Naval Research -5000		
A Thigoda, TA LELLA	0000		
			<u> </u>
1. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES	STATEMENT		126. DISTRIBUTION CODE
1. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES 2a. DISTRIBUTION/AVAILABILITY Approved for public	release: distribution	is unlimited.	125. DISTRIBUTION CODE
1. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES 2a. DISTRIBUTION / AVAILABILITY Approved for public	release; distribution	is unlimited.	126. DISTRIBUTION CODE
<ol> <li>SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES</li> <li>DISTRIBUTION / AVAILABILITY</li> <li>Approved for public</li> <li>ABSTRACT (Maximum 200 work The response of to distributed spati the kernel sin(Mx)/s fast with x for large such functions can be theorem, such integri</li> </ol>	release; distribution rds; f equispaced arrays, e ial fields, typically sin(x) or its square. ge M and does not deca be very time consuming rals can be significan	is unlimited. ither linear, pl encounters integ Since this kern y with x, numeri . By resorting tly simplified,	12b. DISTRIBUTION CODE anar, or volumetric, rals which involve bl oscillates rather cal integration of to Parseval's requiring only
<ul> <li>SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES</li> <li>2a. DISTRIBUTION / AVAILABILITY</li> <li>Approved for public</li> <li>ABSTRACT (Maximum 200 work The response of to distributed spati the kernel sin(Mx)/s fast with x for lary such functions can be theorem, such intego the Fourier transfor procedure is investi- for the examples are</li> </ul>	release; distribution reso f equispaced arrays, e ial fields, typically sin(x) or its square. ge M and does not deca be very time consuming rals can be significan rm of the complementar igated and applied to e also included.	is unlimited. ither linear, pl encounters integ Since this kern y with x, numerin By resorting tly simplified, y part of the in several typical Dord 1: Mathe Mathematic	126. DISTRIBUTION CODE anar, or volumetric, rals which involve al oscillates rather cal integration of to Parseval's requiring only tegrand. This examples; programs Construction of the calcon of the construction to parseval the construction the construction of the construction to parseval the construction to parseval the construction of the construction of the construction to parseval the construction of the constru
<ol> <li>SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES</li> <li>DISTRIBUTION / AVAILABILITY Approved for public</li> <li>ABSTRACT (Maximum 200 wor The response of to distributed spatt the kernel sin(Mx)/s fast with x for larg such functions can l theorem, such integr the Fourier transfor procedure is invest for the examples are</li> <li>SUBJECT TERMS</li> </ol>	release; distribution release; distribution release; distribution release; distribution release; distribution f equispaced arrays, e ial fields, typically sin(x) or its square. ge M and does not deca be very time consuming rals can be significan rm of the complementar igated and applied to e also included. Keyft	is unlimited. ither linear, pl encounters integ Since this kerner y with x, numering tly simplified, y part of the in several typical Dordal: "Diata International Content on transform	12b. DISTRIBUTION CODE anar, or volumetric, rals which involve el oscillates rather cal integration of to Parseval's requiring only tegrand. This examples; programs conducation of the particulation conducation of the particulation the particulati
<ol> <li>SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES</li> <li>DISTRIBUTION / AVAILABILITY Approved for public</li> <li>ABSTRACT (Maximum 200 wold The response of to distributed spatt the kernel sin(Mx)/s fast with x for large such functions can be theorem, such integration theorem, such integration the Fourier transfor procedure is invest for the examples are for the examples are Summat</li> </ol>	release; distribution rds) f equispaced arrays, e ial fields, typically sin(x) or its square. ge M and does not deca be very time consuming rals can be significan rm of the complementar igated and applied to e also included. Keyff ation, Fouri ion, Parse	is unlimited. ither linear, pl encounters integ Since this kerner y with x, numering tly simplified, y part of the in several typical Dord 1: That mathematica mathematica er transform, val's theorem,	12b. DISTRIBUTION CODE anar, or volumetric, rals which involve bel oscillates rather cal integration of to Parseval's requiring only tegrand. This examples; programs construction of the construction of the construction to construct of the construct of t
<ul> <li>SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES</li> <li>2a. DISTRIBUTION/AVAILABILITY Approved for public</li> <li>3. ABSIRACT (Maximum 200 wood The response of to distributed spati the kernel sin(Mx)/s fast with x for lard such functions can be theorem, such integre the Fourier transfor procedure is investi for the examples are Summat Sinc fit</li> </ul>	release; distribution release; distribution release; distribution release; distribution release; distribution f equispaced arrays, e ial fields, typically sin(x) or its square. ge M and does not deca be very time consuming rals can be significan rm of the complementar igated and applied to e also included. Keyff ation, Fouri ion, Parse unction, Fast	is unlimited. ither linear, pl encounters integ Since this kerner y with x, numering tly simplified, y part of the in several typical Dords: ' Didth' Interview er transform, val's theorem, Fourier transform	12b. DISTRIBUTION CODE anar, or volumetric, rals which involve ploscillates rather cal integration of to Parseval's requiring only tegrand. This examples; programs CALCALCALA MINIMER OF PAGES 38 16. PRICE CODE

Prescr bed	D٧	ANSI	Sta	239-16	
298-102					

TR	8	6	8	9
	~	v	~	-

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
LIST OF TABLES	ii
LIST OF SYMBOLS	iii
INTRODUCTION	1
GENERAL APPROACH	3
Case 1	4
Case 2	5
Case 3	6
Case 4	7
EXAMPLES	9
Example A	9
Example B	11
Example C	14
Special Cases	16
APPLICATION TO SUMS	19
Case n = 0	20
Case $n = 1$	21
Case $n = 2$	22
Example	22
Some Related Sums	23
SUMMARY	25
APPENDIX A - USE OF FAST FOURIER TRANSFORM	27
APPENDIX B - PROGRAMS FOR (6), (10), AND (13B)	31
REFERENCES	33

i

#### LIST OF TABLES

Table			Page
<b>B-1.</b>	Program for	(6)	31
<b>B-2.</b>	Program for	(10)	31
B-3.	Program for	(13B)	32



#### LIST OF SYMBOLS

M	integer, number of elements in line array
g(t)	arbitrary function of t, $(1)$
G(ω)	Fourier transform of $g(t)$ , (1)
v	integral of product of $g(t) h^{*}(t)$ , (2)
Η(ω)	Fourier transform of $h(t)$ , (2)
Y	argument of sine functions, (3)
$h_1(t)$	ratio of sine functions, (3)
prime	sum with prime denotes every other term, (3)
H <sub>1</sub> (ω)	Fourier transform of $h_1(t)$ , (4)
v <sub>1</sub>	general integral (5)
$h_2(t)$	square of ratio of sine functions, (7)
<sup>H</sup> 2 <sup>(ω)</sup>	Fourier transform of $h_2(t)$ , (8)
v <sub>2</sub>	general integral (9)
<b>(</b> m)	autocorrelation of weights, (12B)
sub r	real part, (13B)
V <sub>1a</sub>	integral (18)
V <sub>2a</sub>	integral (22)
v <sub>1b</sub>	integral (27)
v <sub>2b</sub>	integral (28)
v <sub>lc</sub>	integral (33)
v <sub>2c</sub>	integral (34)
۵	increment in t, (41),(A-1)
δ <sub>Δ</sub> (t)	impulse train, (41)
•	convolution, (42)
S <sub>N</sub> (M,k)	discrete sine ratio, (52)

iii

- INT integer part, (55)
- V<sub>5</sub> general integral (63)
- $\psi(p)$  autocorrelation of  $\phi(m)$ , (61)
- $g(n\Delta)$  samples of g(t), (A-1)
- $\underline{G}(\omega)$  approximation to  $G(\omega)$ , (A-1)
- N size of FFT, (A-6)
- $g_c(n\Delta)$  collapsed version of  $g(n\Delta)$ , (A-7)
- $\tilde{g}(n\Delta)$  phase modulated  $g(n\Delta)$ , (A-11)
- $\tilde{g}_{c}(n\Delta)$  collapsed version of  $\tilde{g}(n\Delta)$ , (A-12)

## EVALUATION OF INTEGRALS AND SUMS INVOLVING [sin(Mx)/sin(x)]<sup>n</sup>

#### INTRODUCTION

The response of an equiweighted equispaced line array to a distributed field involves the kernel sin(Mx)/sin(x) or its square, depending on whether the voltage or power response, respectively, is of interest [1;2]. Numerical evaluation of such integrals can be very time consuming for two reasons: this kernel oscillates quickly with x for large M, and it does not decay with x. This necessitates fine sampling in x and large integration regions, both of which can lead to a significant computational burden, especially for two-dimensional or three-dimensional arrays. The object of this report is to give an alternative numerical procedure that can be very advantageous in some cases, and, in fact, leads to closed forms for some examples.

The procedure is also applied to summations involving the same kernel. Its utility depends on the rate of decay of the complementary part of the original integrand, as compared with the Fourier transform of this component. In any event, an alternative is presented for the user to consider in any numerical investigation.

> 1/2 Reverse Blank

#### GENERAL APPROACH

For arbitrary function g(t), define its Fourier transform as

$$G(\omega) = \int dt \exp(-i\omega t) g(t) . \qquad (1)$$

(Integrals without limits are over the range of nonzero integrand.) Then Parseval's theorem states that the following two alternative integrals are equal:

$$V = \int dt g(t) h^{*}(t) = \frac{1}{2\pi} \int d\omega G(\omega) H^{*}(\omega) . \qquad (2)$$

Here,  $H(\omega)$  is the Fourier transform of h(t). Now, if  $H(\omega)$  takes on a noticeably simpler form than h(t), then the second integral in (2) can offer an attractive alternative to the first integral in (2). That will indeed be the case here. CASE 1

For integer M  $\geq$  1 and constant  $\gamma$  > 0, consider the special choice of h(t) as

$$h_{1}(t) = \frac{\sin(M\gamma t)}{\sin(\gamma t)} = \sum_{n=0}^{M-1} \exp[i\gamma t(2n+1-M)] =$$
$$= \sum_{m=1-M}^{M-1} \exp(i\gamma tm) , \qquad (3)$$

where the prime on the latter sum denotes skipping every other term. Then the Fourier transform, according to (1), is

$$H_{1}(\omega) = 2\pi \sum_{m=1-M}^{M-1} \delta(\omega - \gamma m)$$
 (4)

Substitution of (3) and (4) in (2) yields

$$V_{1} = \int dt g(t) \frac{\sin(M\gamma t)}{\sin(\gamma t)} = \sum_{m=1-M}^{M-1} G(\gamma m) .$$
 (5)

This result indicates that if  $G(\omega)$ , the Fourier transform of g(t), can be evaluated, then the t integral in (5) is given by a finite sum of equispaced samples of  $G(\omega)$  at increment  $2\gamma$ . The (complex) function g(t) in (5) is arbitrary, except that the integral must converge. When  $G(\omega)$  cannot be analytically evaluated, then proper application of a fast Fourier transform procedure to g(t) can be tailored to yield precisely the equispaced samples required for the right-hand side of (5); this technique is detailed in appendix A.

4

If function  $G(\omega)$  is even in  $\omega$ , then (5) simplifies to

A program for (6) is given in appendix B.

#### CASE 2

For integer  $M \ge 1$  and constant  $\gamma > 0$ , consider the alternative special choice of h(t) as

$$h_{2}(t) = \left[\frac{\sin(M\gamma t)}{\sin(\gamma t)}\right]^{2} = \sum_{n,k=0}^{M-1} \exp[i\gamma t(2n-2k)] = (7A)$$

$$= \sum_{m=1-M}^{M-1} (M - |m|) \exp(i2\gamma tm), \qquad (7B)$$

where we used (3). There is no prime on the latter summation because all terms from 1-M to M-1 are to be included. The Fourier transform of  $h_2(t)$  is

$$H_{2}(\omega) = 2\pi \sum_{m=1-M}^{M-1} (M - |m|) \, \delta(\omega - 2\gamma m) \,. \tag{8}$$

The use of (7A) and (8) in (2) yields

$$V_2 = \int dt g(t) \left[\frac{\sin(M\gamma t)}{\sin(\gamma t)}\right]^2 = \sum_{m=1-M}^{M-1} (M - |m|) G(2\gamma m) . \quad (9)$$

Again, the integral of interest is given by a finite sum of samples of the Fourier transform of g(t), also at increment  $2\gamma$ in  $\omega$ . The fast Fourier transform technique discussed in appendix A is relevant here also. If  $G(\omega)$  is even in  $\omega$ , then we can express (9) as

$$V_2 = M G(0) + 2 \sum_{m=1}^{M-1} (M - m) G(2\gamma m)$$
 for all  $M \ge 1$ . (10)

A program for (10) is given in appendix B.

CASE 3

For arbitrary weights  $\{w_m\}$  and frequencies  $\{\gamma_m\}$ , with

$$h_{3}(t) = \sum_{m} w_{m} \exp(i\gamma_{m}t) , \qquad (11A)$$

then we have a generalization of (3), with

$$H_{3}(\omega) = 2\pi \sum_{m} w_{m} \delta(\omega - \gamma_{m}) . \qquad (11B)$$

(Summations without limits are over the range of nonzero summand.) Use of these expressions in general result (2) yields

$$V_3 \equiv \int dt g(t) \sum_m w_m^* \exp(-i\gamma_m t) = \sum_m w_m^* G(\gamma_m) . \quad (11C)$$

Again, the Fourier transform of g(t) is required, but now at general arguments  $\{\gamma_m\}$ .

CASE 4

Function  $h_2(t)$  in (7) is a special case of the weighted array power response

$$h_{4}(t) = \left| \sum_{k} w_{k} \exp(-i2\gamma tk) \right|^{2} = \sum_{m} \phi(m) \exp(-i2\gamma tm) , \quad (12A)$$

where  $\phi(m)$  is the autocorrelation of the weights:

$$\phi(m) = \sum_{k} w_{k} w_{k-m}^{\star} = \phi^{\star}(-m)$$
 (12B)

The integral in (9) is then generalized to

$$V_{4} \equiv \int dt g(t) h_{4}^{\star}(t) = \int dt g(t) \left| \sum_{k} w_{k} \exp(-i2\gamma tk) \right|^{2} = \sum_{m} \phi(m) G(2\gamma m) , \qquad (13A)$$

upon use of (12A), where g(t) can be complex and nonsymmetric. Thus, integral  $V_4$  requires the autocorrelation of weights  $\{w_k\}$ and the Fourier transform of g(t) for its evaluation. The earlier result in (9) corresponds to weights  $w_k = 1$  for  $1 \le k \le M$ .

When function g(t) is real (but possibly nonsymmetric) and the weights are real, (13A) can be simplified to

$$V_4 = \phi(0) G_r(0) + 2 \sum_{m \ge 1} \phi(m) G_r(2\gamma m)$$
, (13B)

where  $G_r(\omega)$  is the real part of Fourier transform  $G(\omega)$  in (1). A program for (13B) is given in appendix B.

#### **ŁXAMPLES**

#### EXAMPLE A

The first example of interest is

$$g_{a}(t) = \frac{1}{(t-\mu)^{2} + \beta^{2}}, \quad \beta > 0.$$
 (14)

Its Fourier transform is

$$G_{a}(\omega) = \frac{\pi}{\beta} \exp(-i\mu\omega - \beta|\omega|) , \qquad (15)$$

for which the real part is

$$G_{ar}(\omega) = \frac{\pi}{\beta} \cos(\mu \omega) \exp(-\beta |\omega|)$$
 (16)

Since integral (5) is obviously real for example (14), we obtain  $\ .$ 

$$V_{1a} = \int \frac{dt}{(t-\mu)^2 + \beta^2} \frac{\sin(M\gamma t)}{\sin(\gamma t)} = \sum_{m=1-M}^{M-1} G_{ar}(\gamma m) . \quad (17)$$

Substitution of (16) in (17) yields the closed form result

where

$$E_{m} = \exp(-\beta\gamma m)$$
,  $C_{m} = \cos(\mu\gamma m)$ ,  $D = 1 - 2 E_{2} C_{2} + E_{4}$ . (19)

A program for (18) and (19) follows; it is written in BASIC for the Hewlett Packard 9000 computer.

```
10
    INPUT M,Beta,Gamma,Mu ! Beta > 0, Gamma > 0
 20
    B=Beta*Gamma
 30
    C=Mu*Gamma
 40
    E=EXP(-B*2)
 50
    IF (M MODULO 2) = 1 THEN 80
 60
    F=COS(C)*SQR(E)*(1-E)
 70
    GOTO 90
80
    F=.5-.5*E*E
90 A = E COS(C (M-1)) - COS(C (M+1))
100
    A=A*EXP(-B*(M+1))+F
110
    V1a=A*2*PI/(Beta*(1-2*E*COS(C*2)+E*E))
120
    PRINT V1a
130
    END
```

```
When we instead substitute (14) and (16) in (9), there
follows
```

ſ

$$v_{2a} = \int \frac{dt}{(t-\mu)^2 + \beta^2} \left[ \frac{\sin(M\gamma t)}{\sin(\gamma t)} \right]^2 =$$
  
=  $\frac{\pi}{\beta} \sum_{m=1-M}^{M-1} (M - |m|) \cos(2\mu\gamma m) \exp(-2\beta\gamma |m|)$ . (20)

This finite sum can be written in compact form by use of [3; 0.113]. Namely, define here

$$E = \exp(-2\beta\gamma), \quad C = \cos(2\mu\gamma), \quad S = \sin(2\mu\gamma),$$

$$E_{M} = \exp(-2\beta\gamma M), \quad C_{M} = \cos(2\mu\gamma M), \quad S_{M} = \sin(2\mu\gamma M),$$

$$A = 1 - E^{2}, \quad B = 1 + E^{2}, \quad D = B - 2 E C. \quad (21)$$

Then

$$v_{2a} = \int \frac{dt}{(t-\mu)^2 + \beta^2} \left[\frac{\sin(M\gamma t)}{\sin(\gamma t)}\right]^2 =$$

$$= \frac{2\pi}{\beta D} \left[ \frac{M}{2} A - \frac{E}{D} \left( (C B - 2 E) (1 - E_M C_M) + S A E_M S_M \right) \right] . (22)$$

A program for (21) and (22) follows.

10	INPUT M,Beta,Gamma,Mu	1	Beta	>	Ο,	Gamma	>	0
20	Tb=2*Beta*Gamma							
30	Tm=2*Mu*Gamma							
40	E = EXP(-Tb)							
50	A=E*E							
60	B=1+A							
70	A=1-A							
80	C = COS(Tm)							
90	D=B-2*E*C							
L00	Em=EXP(-Tb*M)							
L10	T = (C * B - 2 * E) * (1 - Em * COS(Tm * M))	)						
L20	T=T+SIN(Tm)*A*Em*SIN(Tm*M)							
130	T=.5*M*A-T*E/D							
L40	V2a=T*2*PI/(Beta*D)							
150	PRINT V2a							
160	END							

#### EXAMPLE B

The next example to be considered is

$$g_{b}(t) = \frac{1}{(t-\mu)^{2} + \beta^{2}} \frac{\sin(\alpha t)}{\alpha t}, \quad \beta > 0, \quad \alpha > 0. \quad (23)$$

Since  $g_b(t)$  is a product of two functions, its Fourier transform  $G_b(\omega)$  is given by a convolution of the individual transforms. The Fourier transform of the first term in (23) has already been encountered in (15), and the Fourier transform of the second term in (23) is a rectangle located on interval  $(-\alpha, \alpha)$  in  $\omega$ . Therefore,  $G_b(\omega)$  is given by convolution

$$G_{b}(\omega) = \frac{\pi}{2\alpha\beta} \int du \exp(-i\mu u - \beta |u|) . \qquad (24)$$

$$\omega - \alpha$$

Since  $g_b(t)$  in (23) is real, we need only evaluate the real part,  $G_{br}(\omega)$ , of  $G_b(\omega)$ . With the aid of auxiliary variables

$$C_{\omega} = \cos(\mu\omega), \ S_{\omega} = \sin(\mu\omega), \ \underline{C}_{\omega} = \cosh(\beta\omega), \ \underline{S}_{\omega} = \sinh(\beta\omega),$$

$$C_{\alpha} = \cos(\mu\alpha), \ S_{\alpha} = \sin(\mu\alpha), \ \underline{C}_{\alpha} = \cosh(\beta\alpha), \ \underline{S}_{\alpha} = \sinh(\beta\alpha),$$

$$B_{1} = \underline{C}_{\omega} \ C_{\omega} \ (\beta \ C_{\alpha} - \mu \ S_{\alpha}) + \underline{S}_{\omega} \ S_{\omega} \ (\mu \ C_{\alpha} + \beta \ S_{\alpha}),$$

$$B_{2} = \underline{S}_{\alpha} \ C_{\alpha} \ (\beta \ C_{\omega} - \mu \ S_{\omega}) + \underline{C}_{\alpha} \ S_{\alpha} \ (\mu \ C_{\omega} + \beta \ S_{\omega}), \qquad (25)$$

we find that  $G_{pr}(\omega)$  is given by

$$G_{br}(\omega) = \frac{\pi}{\alpha\beta(\beta^{2}+\mu^{2})} \begin{cases} \beta - \exp(-\beta\alpha) B_{1} & \text{for } 0 \leq \omega \leq \alpha \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ exp(-\beta\omega) B_{2} & \text{for } \alpha \leq \omega \end{cases} \end{cases} . (26)$$

To complete the description, we observe that  $G_{br}(\omega)$  is even in  $\omega$ because  $g_b(t)$  is real. A program for  $G_{br}(\omega)$  follows, where we have made the following identifications:  $W \equiv \omega$ ,  $A \equiv \alpha$ ,  $B \equiv \beta$ ,  $U \equiv \mu$ .

	100	IF WAKA THEN 150
Wa=ABS(W)	110	Ra=1./Ea
F=PI/(A*B*(B*B+U*U))	120	T=(Ra-Ea)*Ca*(B*Cw-U*Sw)
Ea=EXP(-B*A)	130	B2=.5*(T+(Ra+Ea)*Sa*(U*Cw+B*Sw))
Ew=EXP(-B*Wa)	140	RETURN F*Ew*B2
Ca=COS(U*A)	150	Rw≈1./Ew
Cw=COS(U*Wa)	160	T=(Rw+Ew)*Cw*(B*Ca-U*Sa)
Sa=SIN(U*A)	170	B1 = .5 * (T + (Rw - Ew) * Sw * (U * Ca + B * Sa))
Sw=SIN(U*Wa)	180	RETURN F*(B-Ea*B1)
	190	FNEND
	Wa=ABS(W) F=PI/(A*B*(B*B+U*U)) Ea=EXP(-B*A) Ew=EXP(-B*Wa) Ca=COS(U*A) Cw=COS(U*Wa) Sa=SIN(U*A) Sw=SIN(U*Wa)	Wa=ABS(W)       110         F=PI/(A*B*(B*B+U*U))       120         Ea=EXP(-B*A)       130         Ew=EXP(-B*Wa)       140         Ca=COS(U*A)       150         Cw=COS(U*Wa)       160         Sa=SIN(U*A)       170         Sw=SIN(U*Wa)       180         190

If we now employ (23) in (5), we obtain

$$V_{1b} = \int \frac{dt}{(t-\mu)^2 + \beta^2} \frac{\sin(\alpha t)}{\alpha t} \frac{\sin(M\gamma t)}{\sin(\gamma t)} = \sum_{m=1-M}^{M-1} G_{br}(\gamma m) , \quad (27)$$

where  $G_{br}(\omega)$  is given by (25), (26), and its even property. Since there is a break in the analytic form for  $G_{br}(\omega)$  at  $\omega = \pm \alpha$ , it is not reasonable to perform the summation in (27) in closed form; those terms in (27) for  $\gamma |m| \leq \alpha$  utilize the upper line of (26), while those for  $\gamma |m| \geq \alpha$  utilize the lower line of (26). However, since  $G_{br}(\omega)$  is even in  $\omega$ , the simplification in (6) is applicable.

Instead, when (23) is substituted in (9), there follows

$$V_{2b} = \int \frac{dt}{(t-\mu)^2 + \beta^2} \frac{\sin(\alpha t)}{\alpha t} \left[ \frac{\sin(M\gamma t)}{\sin(\gamma t)} \right]^2 = \sum_{m=1-M}^{M-1} (M - |m|) G_{br}(2\gamma m),$$
(28)

where  $G_{br}(\omega)$  is given by (25) and (26). Again, the break in form of  $G_{br}(\omega)$  at  $\omega = \pm \alpha$  precludes a closed form result for the summation in (28); also, the simplification in (10) is immediately applicable to (28). EXAMPLE C

The final example is

$$g_{c}(t) = \frac{1}{(t-\mu)^{2} + \beta^{2}} \left[\frac{\sin(\alpha t)}{\alpha t}\right]^{2}, \quad \beta > 0, \quad \alpha > 0. \quad (29)$$

The Fourier transform of the second term in (29) is a triangle located on interval  $(-2\alpha, 2\alpha)$  in  $\omega$ . Therefore,  $G_{c}(\omega)$  is given by convolution

$$G_{c}(\omega) = \frac{\pi}{2\alpha\beta} \int_{\omega-2\alpha}^{\omega+2\alpha} du \exp(-i\mu u - \beta |u|) \left(1 - \frac{|\omega-u|}{2\alpha}\right) . \quad (30)$$

Because  $g_c(t)$  is real, only the real part of (30) is needed. This tedious calculation has been carried through, with the following result; define auxiliary variables

$$R = \beta^{2} - \mu^{2}, \quad I = 2\beta\mu, \quad D = \beta^{2} + \mu^{2}, \quad E_{\omega} = \exp(-\beta\omega), \quad E_{\alpha} = \exp(-2\beta\alpha),$$

$$\underline{C}_{\alpha} = \cosh(2\beta\alpha), \quad \underline{S}_{\alpha} = \sinh(2\beta\alpha), \quad C_{\alpha} = \cos(2\mu\alpha), \quad S_{\alpha} = \sin(2\mu\alpha),$$

$$\underline{C}_{\omega} = \cosh(\beta\omega), \quad \underline{S}_{\omega} = \sinh(\beta\omega), \quad C_{\omega} = \cos(\mu\omega), \quad S_{\omega} = \sin(\mu\omega),$$

$$C_{1} = \underline{C}_{\omega} C_{\omega} (R C_{\alpha} - I S_{\alpha}) + \underline{S}_{\omega} S_{\omega} (R S_{\alpha} + I C_{\alpha}),$$

$$C_{2} = \underline{C}_{\alpha} C_{\alpha} (R C_{\omega} - I S_{\omega}) + \underline{S}_{\alpha} S_{\alpha} (R S_{\omega} + I C_{\omega}),$$

$$C = R C_{\omega} - I S_{\omega}.$$
(31)

Then we find that

$$G_{CC}(\omega) = \frac{\pi}{2\alpha^{2}\beta D^{2}} \begin{cases} D \beta (2\alpha - \omega) - E_{\omega} C + E_{\alpha} C_{1} & \text{for } 0 \leq \omega \leq 2\alpha \\ & & & \\ & & - E_{\omega} C + E_{\omega} C_{2} & \text{for } 2\alpha \leq \omega \end{cases} \end{cases} (32)$$

Also,  $G_{cr}(\omega)$  is even in  $\omega$ . A program for  $G_{cr}(\omega)$  is listed below, where  $W \equiv \omega$ ,  $A \equiv \alpha$ ,  $B \equiv \beta$ ,  $U \equiv \mu$ .

! A > 0, B > 010 DEF FNGcr(W,A,B,U) 20 Wa=ABS(W) Tb=2.\*A\*B 30 40 Tu=2.\*A\*U 50 Bw=B\*Wa 60 Uw=U\*Wa 70 B2=B\*B 80 U2=U\*U 90 R=B2-U2100 I=2.\*B\*U 110 D=B2+U2120 Ew=EXP(-Bw) 130 Ea=EXP(-Tb) 140 Ca=COS(Tu) 150 Sa=SIN(Tu) 160 Cw=COS(Uw)170 Sw=SIN(Uw) 180 C=R\*Cw-I\*Sw 190 IF Wa<2.\*A THEN 250 200 Ra=1./Ea 210 C2=.5\*(Ra+Ea)\*Ca\*C 220 C2=.5\*(Ra-Ea)\*Sa\*(R\*Sw+I\*Cw)+C2230 T=Ew\*(C2-C)240 GOTO 290 250 Rw=1./Ew C1 = .5 \* (Rw + Ew) \* Cw \* (R \* Ca - I \* Sa)260 270 C1=.5\*(Rw-Ew)\*Sw\*(R\*Sa+I\*Ca)+C1 280 T=D\*(Tb-Bw)-Ew\*C+Ea\*C1 290 RETURN PI\*T/(Tb\*A\*D\*D) 300 FNEND

We now substitute (29) into (5) and get

$$v_{1c} = \int \frac{dt}{(t-\mu)^2 + \beta^2} \left[ \frac{\sin(\alpha t)}{\alpha t} \right]^2 \frac{\sin(M\gamma t)}{\sin(\gamma t)} = \sum_{m=1-M}^{M-1} G_{cr}(\gamma m) , \quad (33)$$

where  $G_{cr}(\omega)$  is given by (31), (32), and its even character. The break in form in (32) at  $\omega = \pm 2\alpha$  precludes a closed form for the sum in (33). However, (6) is still applicable.

When (29) is utilized in (9), there follows

$$v_{2c} = \int \frac{dt}{(t-\mu)^2 + \beta^2} \left[\frac{\sin(\alpha t)}{\alpha t}\right]^2 \left[\frac{\sin(M\gamma t)}{\sin(\gamma t)}\right]^2 =$$
$$= \sum_{m=1-M}^{M-1} (M - |m|) G_{cr}(2\gamma m) . \qquad (34)$$

Equation (10) may also be employed here.

~

~

SPECIAL CASES

If we set M = 1 in (17), there follows

$$\int \frac{dt}{(t-\mu)^2 + \beta^2} = G_{ar}(0) = \frac{\pi}{\beta}, \qquad (35)$$

where we used (16). The same case in (27) yields

$$\int \frac{dt}{(t-\mu)^2 + \beta^2} \frac{\sin(\alpha t)}{\alpha t} = G_{br}(0) =$$

$$= \frac{\pi}{\alpha\beta(\beta^2 + \mu^2)} \left\{\beta - \exp(-\beta\alpha) \left[\beta \cos(\mu\alpha) - \mu \sin(\mu\alpha)\right]\right\}, \quad (36)$$

upon use of (26) and (25). Finally, from (33),

$$\int \frac{dt}{(t-\mu)^2 + \beta^2} \left[\frac{\sin(\alpha t)}{\alpha t}\right]^2 = G_{cr}(0) =$$

$$= \frac{\pi}{2\alpha^{2}\beta(\beta^{2}+\mu^{2})^{2}} \left( 2\alpha\beta(\beta^{2}+\mu^{2}) - R + E_{\alpha}(R C_{\alpha} - I S_{\alpha}) \right), \quad (37)$$

using (32) and (31).

.

17/18 Reverse Blank

#### APPLICATION TO SUMS

In this section, it is more convenient to use Parseval's theorem (2) in the form

$$V = \int dt g(t) h^{*}(t) = \int df G(f) H^{*}(f) ,$$
 (38)

where Fourier transform

$$G(f) = \int dt \, \exp(-i2\pi ft) \, g(t) \, . \tag{39}$$

Now, we take as our candidate h(t) function,

$$h(t) = p(t) \Delta \delta_{\Lambda}(t) , \qquad (40)$$

where  $\delta_{\Lambda}(t)$  is the infinite impulse train

$$\delta_{\Delta}(t) = \sum_{k} \delta(t - k\Delta) . \qquad (41)$$

The Fourier transform of h(t) is then

$$H(f) = P(f) \oplus \delta_{1/\Delta}(f) = \sum_{k} P\left(f - \frac{k}{\Delta}\right), \quad (42)$$

where P(f) is the Fourier transform of p(t),  $\Theta$  denotes convolution, and we have utilized the fact that the Fourier transform of impulse train  $\Delta \delta_{\Delta}(t)$  is another impulse train,  $\delta_{1/\Delta}(f)$ .

Substitution of (40) and (42) in (38) yields

19

$$V = \Delta \sum_{k} g(k\Delta) p^{*}(k\Delta) = \sum_{k} \int df G(f) P^{*}(f - \frac{k}{\Delta}) . \quad (43)$$

For general p(t) and P(f), this will not be a useful relation, since the right-hand side of (43) is an infinite sum of integrals. However, we will be interested here only in the special cases of

$$p(t) = \left[\frac{\sin(M_{\gamma}t)}{\sin(\gamma t)}\right]^{n}, \quad n \text{ integer }.$$
(44)

$$CASE n = 0$$

For n = 0, the above relations specialize to

$$p(t) = 1$$
,  $P(f) = \delta(f)$ ,

$$H(f) = \sum_{k} \delta\left(f - \frac{k}{\Delta}\right) ,$$

$$W_{o} = \Delta \sum_{k} g(k\Delta) = \sum_{k} G\left(\frac{k}{\Delta}\right) . \qquad (45)$$

This is a discrete version of Parseval's theorem. Although one infinite sum has been traded for another, we can now choose that alternative that has the most rapidly decaying (and/or easily computed) summand for numerical evaluation.

CASE n = 1

Now we have, via (3),

$$p(t) = \frac{\sin(M\gamma t)}{\sin(\gamma t)} = \sum_{m=1-M}^{M-1} ' \exp(i\gamma tm) . \qquad (46)$$

There follows

$$P(f) = \sum_{m=1-M}^{M-1} \delta \left( f - \frac{\gamma m}{2\pi} \right) ,$$

$$H(f) = \sum_{k} \sum_{m=1-M}^{M-1} \delta \left( f - \frac{k}{\Delta} - \frac{\gamma m}{2\pi} \right) ,$$

$$V_{1} = \Delta \sum_{k} g(k\Delta) \frac{\sin(M\gamma\Delta k)}{\sin(\gamma\Delta k)} =$$
(47)

$$= \sum_{k} \sum_{m=1-M}^{M-1} G\left(\frac{k}{\Delta} + \frac{\gamma m}{2\pi}\right) . \qquad (48)$$

Again, we have an alternative infinite sum (48) that hopefully decays faster than the original sum (47). The sin(Mx)/sin(x) term does not help convergence in (47) because this term never decays for large x. Although (48) is a double sum, the summation on m only contains M terms; the utility of (48) depends heavily on the asymptotic decay of G(f) for large f.

CASE n = 2

With the aid of (7), we now find

$$p(t) = \left[\frac{\sin(M\gamma t)}{\sin(\gamma t)}\right]^{2} = \sum_{m=1-M}^{M-1} (M - |m|) \exp(i2\gamma tm) ,$$

$$P(f) = \sum_{m=1-M}^{M-1} (M - |m|) \delta\left(f - \frac{\gamma m}{\pi}\right) ,$$

$$H(f) = \sum_{k} \sum_{m=1-M}^{M-1} (M - |m|) \delta\left(f - \frac{k}{\Delta} - \frac{\gamma m}{\pi}\right) ,$$

$$V_{2} = \Delta \sum_{k} g(k\Delta) \left[\frac{\sin(M\gamma\Delta k)}{\sin(\gamma\Delta k)}\right]^{2} = (49)$$

$$= \sum_{k} \sum_{m=1-M}^{M-1} (M - |m|) G\left(\frac{k}{\Delta} + \frac{\gamma m}{\pi}\right) . (50)$$

#### EXAMPLE

Consider, as in (14) and (16),

$$g_{a}(t) = \frac{1}{(t-\mu)^{2} + \beta^{2}},$$
  

$$G_{ar}(f) = \frac{\pi}{\beta} \cos(2\pi\mu f) \exp(-2\pi\beta |f|). \qquad (51)$$

The summations in (47) and (49) are very slowly decaying, leading to difficulty in attaining accurate results. The alternatives in

(48) and (50), on the other hand, have exponential decay and can be evaluated quite accurately. The additional examples given earlier in (23)-(26) and in (29)-(32), along with the corresponding programs, lend reasonable alternatives to some otherwise lengthy numerical calculations.

SOME RELATED SUMS

Here, we collect a few closed form results for sums involving the sin(Mx)/sin(x) kernel. For ease of notation, define

$$S_{N}(M,k) = \frac{\sin(Mk\pi/N)}{\sin(k\pi/N)} .$$
 (52)

Observe that

$$S_{N}(M,k) = \begin{cases} M & \text{for } k = 0, \pm 2N, \pm 4N, \dots \\ \\ M(-1)^{M-1} & \text{for } k = \pm N, \pm 3N, \dots \end{cases}$$
(53)

Then, we find the sum over one interval to be

$$\sum_{k=0}^{N-1} S_N(M,k) = \begin{cases} M & \text{for } M \text{ even} \\ \\ N(1+2J) & \text{for } M \text{ odd} \end{cases}, \quad (54)$$

where

$$J = INT\left(\frac{M-1}{2N}\right) .$$
 (55)

The sum over a double interval is

$$\sum_{k=0}^{2N-1} S_{N}(M,k) = \begin{cases} 0 & \text{for } M = 0, 2, 4, \dots \\ \\ 2N & \text{for } M = 1, 3, \dots, 2N-1 \end{cases} .$$
(56)

The correlation on the second variable of  $\mathbf{S}_{\mathbf{N}}^{}$  is

$$\sum_{k=0}^{N-1} S_N(M,k) S_N(M,k+j) = N S_N(M,j) \text{ for } 0 \le M \le N \text{ and all } j. (57)$$

Finally, the correlation on the first variable is

$$\sum_{k=0}^{N-1} S_N(M,k) S_N(M+2L,k) = M(M+2L) +$$

$$+ \begin{cases} \underline{M}(N - \underline{M} - 2\underline{L}) & \text{for } 0 \leq \underline{M} + \underline{L} \leq N \\ N(3\underline{M} + 2\underline{L} - 2N) - \underline{M}(\underline{M} + 2\underline{L}) & \text{for } N < \underline{M} + \underline{L} \end{cases} , (58)$$

for all M, L, N, where

$$\underline{M} = M MOD N , \qquad \underline{L} = L MOD N . \tag{59}$$

#### SUMMARY

Extensions to integrals involving  $[\sin(Mx)/\sin(x)]^n$  for n > 2 are possible, based upon the results presented here. For example, starting from (12A) for arbitrary weights, we could consider

$$h_5(t) = h_4^2(t) = \sum_p \psi(p) \exp(-i2\gamma tp)$$
, (60)

where

$$\psi(p) = \sum_{m} \phi(m) \phi^{\star}(m-p) \qquad (61)$$

is the autocorrelation of sequence  $\{\phi(m)\}$  defined in (12B). Therefore, Fourier transform

$$H_{5}(\omega) = 2\pi \sum_{p} \psi(p) \delta(\omega + 2\gamma p) , \qquad (62)$$

giving rise to

$$V_5 \equiv \int dt g(t) h_5(t) = \sum_p \psi(p) G(2\gamma p)$$
. (63)

The case of equal weights  $\{w_k\}$  in (12A) now corresponds to n = 4in the sine function ratio above, and  $\psi(p)$  is the autocorrelation of a triangular sequence. The evaluation of integrals and sums involving the term  $[\sin(Mx)/\sin(x)]^n$  can often be simplified by the use of Parseval's theorem because this term has a Fourier transform which is a finite sum of delta functions. Major effort can then be concentrated on getting the Fourier transform of the complementary part of the integrand. This procedure has been applied here to several examples which arise in evaluation of the response of equispaced arrays to distributed spatial fields. For more complicated fields, a fast Fourier transform procedure combined with the above result leads to a very efficient method of integral evaluations. Applications of this procedure have been made in [5].

#### APPENDIX A - USE OF FAST FOURIER TRANSFORM

The summations for  $V_1$  and  $V_2$  in (5) and (9), respectively, require the evaluation of the Fourier transform of g(t), namely G( $\omega$ ), at equispaced increment  $2\gamma$ . But this latter function can be approximated by means of the trapezoidal rule according to

$$G(\omega) = \int dt \exp(-i\omega t) g(t) =$$

$$\simeq \Delta \sum_{n} \exp(-i\omega\Delta n) g(n\Delta) = \underline{G}(\omega) = \sum_{n} G\left(\omega - n\frac{2\pi}{\Delta}\right), \quad (A-1)$$

where  $\Delta$  is the sampling increment in t. The latter summation in (A-1) indicates aliasing lobes separated by  $2\pi/\Delta$  on the  $\omega$  axis. In order to control aliasing, we must choose  $\Delta$  small enough, say  $\Delta < \Delta_0$ . Then samples of approximation <u>G</u>( $\omega$ ) in (A-1) at multiples of  $2\gamma$  are given by

$$\underline{G}(2\gamma m) = \Delta \sum_{n} \exp(-i2\gamma \Delta mn) g(n\Delta) . \qquad (A-2)$$

Now since  $\Delta$  is arbitrary, except for upper limit  $\Delta_{\rho}$ , choose

$$\Delta = \frac{\pi}{N\gamma} , \qquad (A-3)$$

where N is an integer and  $\gamma$  is the prescribed increment in  $\omega$ . In order that  $\Delta$  be less than  $\Delta_{\rho}$ , we must take integer

$$N > \frac{\pi}{\gamma \Delta_{O}}$$
 (A-4)

Use of (A-3) in (A-2) gives

$$\underline{G}(2\gamma m) = \Delta \sum_{n} \exp(-i2\pi m n/N) g(n\Delta) = (A-5)$$

$$= \Delta \sum_{n=0}^{N-1} \exp(-i2\pi m n/N) g_{c}(n\Delta) , \qquad (A-6)$$

where "collapsed" sequence [4; pages 4-5]

$$g_{c}(n\Delta) \equiv \sum_{k} g(n\Delta + kN\Delta) \quad \text{for } 0 \leq n \leq N - 1$$
. (A-7)

The manipulation from (A-5) to (A-6) is exact; it avoids truncation error normally associated with functions g(t) which decay slowly with t. The sum on k in (A-7) must be carried out (for each n) until negligible values for g are encountered for both positive as well as negative values of k.

Equation (A-6) indicates that values of  $\underline{G}(2\gamma m)$  for m = 0 to N - 1 are available by an N-point fast Fourier transform when N is a power of 2. Values for negative m are available in location m mod N. In order to get all the desired values of  $\underline{G}(2\gamma m)$ required for (9), without aliasing, we also require that N/2 > M. Thus, the final condition on integer N is

$$N > max\left(\frac{\pi}{\gamma\Delta_0}, 2M\right)$$
 (A-8)

For the case of (5), where the increment on  $\omega$  is 2 $\gamma$ , but starting at  $\omega = \gamma$ , we return to (A-1) to find that

$$\underline{G}(\gamma + 2\gamma m) = \Delta \sum_{n} \exp(-i\gamma \Delta n - i2\gamma \Delta m n) g(n\Delta) . \quad (A-9)$$

The same choice of  $\Delta$  in (A-3) now yields

$$\underline{G}(\gamma + 2\gamma m) = \Delta \sum_{n} \exp(-i2\pi m n/N) \exp(-i\pi n/N) g(n\Delta) . (A-10)$$

This result is identical to (A-5) except that  $g(n\Delta)$  must be replaced by

$$\exp(-i\pi n/N) g(n\Delta) \equiv \tilde{g}(n\Delta)$$
. (A-11)

Calculation of the collapsed version of  $\tilde{g}$  is eased by the observation that

$$\tilde{g}_{c}(n\Delta) \equiv \sum_{k} \tilde{g}(n\Delta + kN\Delta) =$$

$$= \sum_{k} \exp(-i\pi(n + kN)/N) g(n\Delta + kN\Delta) =$$

= exp(-i\pi n/N)  $\sum_{k}$  (-1)<sup>k</sup> g(n\Delta + kN\Delta) for  $0 \le n \le N - 1$ , (A-12)

thereby leading exactly to

$$\underline{G}(\gamma + 2\gamma m) = \Delta \sum_{n=0}^{N-1} \exp(-i2\pi m n/N) \tilde{g}_{c}(n\Delta) . \qquad (A-13)$$

The leading phase factor in (A-12) only needs to be evaluated at N different values, and the sum in (A-12) requires differencing of "adjacent" samples of g spaced by NA, rather than the straight summation previously adequate for (A-6) and (A-7). Condition (A-8) applies here as well.

> 29/30 Reverse Blank

APPENDIX B - PROGRAMS FOR (6), (10), AND (13B) Table B-1. Program for (6) 1 > 0 10 M=7 20 Gamma=1.31 30 DOUBLE M,Ms > 0 1 INTEGERS 1 40 S=0. 50 IF (M MODULO 2)=1 THEN 110 60 FOR Ms=1 TO M-1 STEP 2 S=S+FNG(Gamma\*Ms) 70 NEXT Ms 80 90 V1=2.\*S 100 GOTO 150 110 FOR Ms=2 TO M-1 STEP 2 120 S=S+FNG(Gamma\*Ms) 130 NEXT Ms 140 V1=FNG(0.)+2.\*S 150 PRINT M,Gamma,V1 160 END 170 1 180 DEF FNG(W) Table B-2. Program for (10) ! > 0 10 M=6! > 0 20 Gamma=.71 30 DOUBLE M,Ms ! INTEGERS 40 G2=2.\*Gamma 50 S=0. FOR Ms=1 TO M-160 S=S+(M-Ms)\*FNG(G2\*Ms)70 80 NEXT Ms V2=M\*FNG(0.)+2.\*S90 PRINT M,Gamma,V2 100 110 END 120 1 130 DEF FNG(W)

Table B-3. Program for (13B) 10 M=9 1 > 0 20 Gamma=.79 1 > 0 30 DOUBLE M, MS, KS ! INTEGERS 40 DIM W(100) 50 REDIM W(1:M) 60 CALL Weights(M,W(\*)) ! REAL WEIGHTS 70 G2=2.\*Gamma 80 S=0. 90 FOR Ms=1 TO M-1 100 Phi=0. 110 FOR Ks=Ms+1 TO M 120 Phi=Phi+W(Ks)\*W(Ks-Ms) ! CORRELATION OF WEIGHTS 130 NEXT Ks 140 S=S+Phi\*FNGr(G2\*Ms) 150 NEXT Ms 160 Phi=0. 170 FOR Ks=1 TO M 180 Phi=Phi+W(Ks)\*W(Ks) 190 NEXT Ks 200 V4=Phi\*FNGr(0.)+2.\*S 210 PRINT M, Gamma, V4 220 END 230 1 240 SUB Weights(DOUBLE M,REAL W(\*)) 250 DOUBLE KS ! INTEGER 260 T=2.\*PI/M 270 FOR Ks=1 TO M 280 D=Ks-.5 

 290
 W(Ks)=1.
 !
 FLAT WEIGHTS

 300
 W(Ks)=.5-.5\*COS(T\*D)
 !
 HANN WEIGHTS

 310
 W(Ks)=.54-.46\*COS(T\*D)
 !
 HAMMING WEIGHTS

 320 NEXT Ks 330 MAT W=W/SUM(W) ! NORMALIZATION 340 SUBEND 350 1 360 DEF FNGr(W)

L

#### REFERENCES

1. S. H. Ko and H. H. Schloeme "Calculations of Turbulent Boundary Layer Pressure Fluctuations Transmitted into a Viscoelastic Layer," Journal of the Acoustical Society of America, volume 85, pages 1469 - 1477, 1989.

 S. H. Ko, "Hydrophone Array Performance in Response to Turbulent Boundary Layer Pressure Fluctuations," Proceedings of Toyohashi International Conference on Ultrasonic Technology, Toyohashi, Japan, April 20 - 22, 1987.

I. S. Gradshteyn and I. M. Ryzhik, Table of Integrals,
 Series, and Products, Academic Press, Inc., New York, NY, 1980.
 A. H. Nuttall, Alias-Free Wigner Distribution Function and
 Complex Ambiguity Function for Discrete-Time Samples, NUSC
 Technical Report 8533, Naval Underwater Systems Center, New
 London, CT, 14 April 1989.

5. S. H. Ko and A. H. Nuttall, "The Analytical Evaluation of Flush-Mounted Hydrophone Array Response to the Corcos Turbulent Wall Pressure Spectrum", to be submitted to the Journal of the Acoustical Society of America, June 1990.

> 33/34 Reverse Blank

#### INITIAL DISTRIBUTION LIST

#### Addressee

No. of Copies

DTIC

12